IV

(Notices)

NOTICES FROM EUROPEAN UNION INSTITUTIONS, BODIES, OFFICES AND AGENCIES

EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT

2012-2013 SESSION

Sittings of 10 to 13 December 2012 STRASBOURG

MINUTES OF THE SITTING OF 10 DECEMBER 2012

(2013/C 77 E/01)

Contents		Page
1.	Resumption of the session	2
2.	Approval of the minutes of the previous sitting	2
3.	Interpretation of the Rules of Procedure	2
4.	Composition of Parliament	3
5.	Request for the waiver of parliamentary immunity	3
6.	Composition of committees	3
7.	Signature of acts adopted under the ordinary legislative procedure	3
8.	Action taken on Parliament's positions and resolutions	4
9.	Questions for oral answer and written declarations (submission)	4
10.	Transfers of appropriations	5
11.	Petitions	5
12.	Follow-up to a request for waiver of immunity	6
13.	Documents received	7
14.	Order of business	12
15.	EU-Central America association agreement (debate)	13

Con	Contents (continued)	
16.	EU-Colombia/Peru trade agreement *** (debate)	13
17.	Transitional arrangements for bilateral investment agreements between Member States and third countries ***II (debate)	14
18.	Macro-financial assistance to the Kyrgyz Republic ***I (debate)	14
19.	One-minute speeches on matters of political importance	15
20.	Prevention of age-related diseases of women (short presentation)	15
21.	Completing the digital single market (short presentation)	15
22.	Rising threats from antimicrobial resistance (short presentation)	16
23.	Financing SME trade and investment (short presentation)	16
24.	A digital freedom strategy in EU foreign policy (short presentation)	16
25.	Agenda of the next sitting	17
26.	Closure of the sitting	17
ΑΤΊ	FENDANCE REGISTER	1.8

MINUTES OF THE SITTING OF 10 DECEMBER 2012

IN THE CHAIR: Gianni PITTELLA

Vice-President

1. Resumption of the session

The sitting opened at 17.00.

2. Approval of the minutes of the previous sitting

The minutes of the previous sitting were approved.

3. Interpretation of the Rules of Procedure

The President informed Parliament, pursuant to Rule 211(3), of the following interpretation of Rule 187, given by the Committee on Constitutional Affairs, to which the matter had been referred.

'In the event that the seat of a full member of a committee falls vacant, a permanent substitute from the same political group shall be entitled to vote in place of the full member, on a temporary basis pending the provisional replacement of the full member in accordance with Rule 186(5), or, in the absence of such provisional replacement, pending the appointment of a new full member. Such entitlement is based on Parliament's decision concerning the numerical composition of the committee, and aims at ensuring that the number of members of the political group concerned who can take part in the vote is equal to the number entitled to do so before the seat fell vacant.'

If this interpretation was not contested by a political group or by at least 40 Members (Rule 211(4)) before the opening of the following day's sitting, Tuesday 11 December 2012, it would be deemed to have been adopted. Otherwise, the matter would be put to the vote in Parliament.

4. Composition of Parliament

The Lithuanian authorities had given notice of the election of Justina Vitkauskaite to replace Viktor Uspaskich as Member of Parliament with effect from 21 November 2012.

The Bulgarian authorities had given notice of the election of Monika Hans Panayotova to replace Emil Stoyanov as Member of Parliament with effect from 6 December 2012.

Under Rule 3(2), until their credentials had been verified or a ruling had been given on any dispute, and provided they had signed a written declaration that they did not hold any office incompatible with that of Member of the European Parliament, Justina Vitkauskaite and Monika Hans Panayotova would take their seat in Parliament and on its bodies and enjoy all the rights attaching thereto.

5. Request for the waiver of parliamentary immunity

The French authorities had forwarded a request by the Principal State Prosecutor at the Court of Appeal of Lyons that Marine Le Pen's parliamentary immunity be waived.

Pursuant to Rule 6(2), the request had been referred to the committee responsible, the JURI Committee.

6. Composition of committees

The President had received the following requests for appointments from the ALDE and Verts/ALE Groups and the non-attached Members' secretariat:

REGI Committee: Justina Vitkauskaite

Ewald Stadler was no longer a full member.

AGRI Committee: Ewald Stadler

Special Committee on Organised Crime, Corruption and Money Laundering: Jan Philipp Albrecht to replace Nicole Kiil-Nielsen

The appointments would be deemed ratified if there were no objections before the approval of these minutes.

7. Signature of acts adopted under the ordinary legislative procedure

The President announced that on Wednesday, together with the President of the Council, he would sign the following acts adopted under the ordinary legislative procedure (Rule 74):

 Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council on jurisdiction and the recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters (recast) (00056/2012/LEX - C7-0407/2012 -2010/0383(COD))

- Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council concerning the implementation of the Agreement in the form of an Exchange of Letters between the European Union and Brazil pursuant to Article XXVIII of the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade (GATT) 1994 relating to the modification of concessions with respect to processed poultry meat provided for in the EU Schedule annexed to GATT 1994, and of the Agreement in the form of an Exchange of Letters between the European Union and Thailand pursuant to Article XXVIII of the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade (GATT) 1994 relating to the modification of concessions with respect to processed poultry meat provided for in the EU Schedule annexed to GATT 1994, and amending and supplementing Annex I to Council Regulation (EEC) No 2658/87 on the tariff and statistical nomenclature and on the Common Customs Tariff (00061/2012/LEX C7-0406/2012 2012/0054(COD))
- Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council introducing, on the occasion of the accession of Croatia to the European Union, special temporary measures for the recruitment of Union officials and temporary staff (00058/2012/LEX C7-0405/2012 2012/0224(COD))
- Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council on the allocation of tariff-rate quotas applying to exports of wood from the Russian Federation to the European Union (00059/2012/LEX - C7-0404/2012 - 2012/0217(COD))
- Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council establishing transitional arrangements for bilateral investment agreements between Member States and third countries (00066/2012/LEX - C7-0403/2012 - 2010/0197(COD))
- Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council amending Council Regulation (EC) No 1225/2009 on protection against dumped imports from countries not members of the European Community (00060/2012/LEX - C7-0402/2012 - 2012/0145(COD)).

8. Action taken on Parliament's positions and resolutions

The Commission communication on the action taken on the positions and resolutions adopted by Parliament at the September 2012 part-session was available on the Séance en direct site.

9. Questions for oral answer and written declarations (submission)

The following documents had been submitted by Members:

- 1) oral questions (Rule 115)
 - (O-000164/2012) by Syed Kamall and James Elles, on behalf of the ECR Group, to the Commission, on EU Growth (B7-0369/2012),
 - (O-000169/2012) by Klaus-Heiner Lehne, on behalf of the Committee on Legal Affairs, to the Commission: Mediation in civil and commercial matters (B7-0370/2012),
 - (O-000209/2012) by Gabriele Zimmer, Marisa Matias, Nikolaos Chountis, Jürgen Klute, Thomas Händel, Søren Bo Søndergaard, Patrick Le Hyaric and Mikael Gustafsson, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, to the Commission, on EU Growth (B7-0371/2012),
 - (O-000210/2012) by Hannes Swoboda, on behalf of the S&D Group, to the Commission, on EU Growth (B7-0372/2012),
 - (O-000211/2012) by Jürgen Creutzmann, Toine Manders and Nadja Hirsch, on behalf of the ALDE Group, to the Commission, on EU growth (B7-0551/2012).

- 2) written declarations for inclusion in the register (Rule 123)
 - Nuno Teixeira, Izaskun Bilbao Barandica, Carlo Fidanza, Silvia-Adriana Țicău and Giommaria Uggias on boosting nautical tourism in the European Union (0038/2012).

10. Transfers of appropriations

Under Article 22 of the Financial Regulation, the Committee on Budgets had decided not to object to the Committee of the Regions' proposal for transfers of appropriations INF 11/2012, INF 12/2012, INF 13/2012, INF 14/2012 and INF 15/2012.

Under Article 22 of the Financial Regulation, the Committee on Budgets had decided not to object to the Office of the European Ombudsman's proposal for transfer of appropriations 4/2012.

Under Article 22 of the Financial Regulation, the Committee on Budgets had decided not to object to the Court of Auditors' proposal for transfer of appropriations V/AB-12/C/12.

* *

Under Articles 22 and 24 of the Financial Regulation, the Committee on Budgets had decided not to object to the European Economic and Social Committee's proposal for transfers of appropriations DEC 1/2012, DEC 2/2012 and DEC 3/2012.

Under Articles 22 and 24 of the Financial Regulation, the Committee on Budgets had decided not to object to the Committee of the Region's proposal for transfer of appropriations DEC 1/2012.

* *

Under Article 24 of the Financial Regulation, the Court of Justice of the European Union had informed the budgetary authority of its proposals for transfers of appropriations 6/2012 and 7/2012.

* *

Under Article 24(4) of the Financial Regulation as interpreted in point 20 of the joint declaration on transitional measures applicable to the budgetary procedure after the entry into force of the Lisbon Treaty, the Committee on Budgets had approved the Commission's proposal for transfer of appropriations DEC 48/2012 (N7-0128/2012 - C7-0384/2012 - 2012/2305(GBD)).

* *

Under Article 47(1) of the Financial Regulation, the Committee on Budgets had decided not to object to the Office of the European Ombudsman's proposal concerning adjustment of its establishment plan 1 – financial year 2012.

11. Petitions

The following petitions, which had been entered in the register on the dates shown below, had been forwarded to the committee responsible under Rule 201(6):

José María Álvarez Álvarez (No 1345/2012); Dany Cristian (No 1346/2012); (name withheld) (No 1347/2012); Cosma Ionel Munteanu (No 1348/2012); (name withheld) (No 1349/2012); Claudiu Coldea (No 1350/2012); Antonia Ros Martínez (No 1351/2012); Ioan Cosmin Nicula (No 1352/2012); (name withheld) (No 1353/2012); (name withheld) (No 1354/2012); Fernando Álvarez Puig de la Bellacasa (No 1355/2012); Matías Alonso Blasco (Grupo para la Recuperación de la Memoria Histórica) (No 1356/2012); (name withheld) (No 1357/2012); (name withheld) (No 1358/2012); (name withheld) (No 1359/2012); Manuel António Cavaco Palhinha (No 1360/2012); (name withheld) (No 1361/2012); Eduardo Marín Frasser (No 1362/2012); Manole Ion (No 1363/2012); Ioana Marina Ungureanu (No 1364/2012); Ioan Filip (No 1365/2012); Constantin Gherghina (No 1366/2012); Alejandro Laguna Martín-Meldaña (Plataforma Sindical de Empleados Públicos de España) (No 1367/2012); Encarnación Moya Gómez (No 1368/2012); María del Mar Guerrero Arjona (No 1369/2012); Pamfil Marin (No 1370/2012); Christian Paulussen (No 1371/2012); Edgar Stejskal (Fraport AG Frankfurt Airport Services Worldwide) (No 1372/2012); Udo Loggen (No 1373/2012); Elisabeth Schmock (45 signatures) (No 1374/2012); (name withheld) (No 1375/2012); (name withheld) (No 1376/2012); Andreas Jähne (No 1377/2012); Michael Wolfgang Mayerl (No 1378/2012); Hermann Falke (No 1379/2012); (name withheld) (No 1380/2012); (name withheld) (No 1381/2012); Oliver Strixner (No 1382/2012); Johannes Maaz (No 1383/2012); (name withheld) (No 1384/2012); Dieter Werthenbach (No 1385/2012); Steffen Beier (No 1386/2012); (name withheld) (No 1387/2012); Winfried Hanemann (No 1388/2012); Viera Langschová (No 1389/2012); Krisztina Orosz (No 1390/2012); Cristinel Farsch (94 signatures) (No 1391/2012); Tamás Nagy (No 1392/2012); Melas Gianniotis (Enosi Asfaliston Boreiou Ellados -Union des Assureurs du Nord de la Grèce) (No 1393/2012); Spyridon Zouridakis (Association Pulley) (No 1394/2012); Antonis Kanakis (No 1395/2012); Kamil Brahmi (No 1396/2012); (name withheld) (No 1397/2012); Radosław Judycki (No 1398/2012); Janne Liukkonen (No 1399/2012); Marián Holý (No 1400/2012); Donalda Saulė Surplytė (Kisinai Village Community) (No 1401/2012); Petur Stoyanov (No 1402/2012); (name withheld) (No 1403/2012); Martin Slingenberg (No 1404/2012); Oisin Jones-Dillon (No 1405/2012); Oisin Jones-Dillon (No 1406/2012); (name withheld) (No 1407/2012); (name withheld) (No 1408/2012); Louise A Peberdy (No 1409/2012); Jacek Antonowicz (No 1410/2012); Yuriy Nikolaev (No 1411/2012); Ivan Iliev Yordanov (No 1412/2012); Monika Ortlepp (No 1413/2012); Marian Mroziewski (No 1414/2012); Michele Fiorentino (No 1415/2012); Gerhard Bucher (Stadt Kaufbeuren) (2 signatures) (No 1416/2012); Yosheba Miren Sainz de la Higuera y Gartzia (No 1417/2012); Romeo Ruggiero (No 1418/2012); Antonio Maida (No 1419/2012); Yan Maria Li (No 1420/2012); Gennaro Del Prete (No 1421/2012); Claire Lavirotte (No 1422/2012); Delio Delledonne (No 1423/2012); (name withheld) (No 1424/2012); Mario Fico (No 1425/2012); Maric Dragan (No 1426/2012); Francesco Iurato (No 1427/2012); Nevin Colin (No 1428/2012); Agnès Lassallette (No 1429/2012); Nicolas Beger (Amnesty International European Institutions Office) (No 1430/2012); Oisin Jones-Dillon (No 1431/2012); Barbara Schneider (No 1432/2012); Max Turiel Ibáñez (Ilustre Colegio de Abogados de Madrid) (No 1433/2012); (name withheld) (No 1434/2012); Hajar Atila (No 1435/2012); Olga Baltag (No 1436/2012); Olga Baltag (No 1437/2012); Marcello Mazza (No 1438/2012); Antonio Jesús Fernández Luque (Ayuntamiento de Colmenar (Málaga)) (No 1439/2012); Rizwan Islam (No 1440/2012); Didier Malé (No 1441/2012); Massimiliano Masala (No 1442/2012); Danutė Drungytė (No 1443/2012); Antonio Casarini (No 1444/2012); Umberto Mazziotti (No 1445/2012); (name withheld) (No 1446/2012); Hadrien Lagneau (No 1447/2012); (name withheld) (No 1448/2012); (name withheld) (No 1449/2012); Walter Achille Giovanni Serpagli (No 1450/2012); Lorenzo Croce (Ass. Italiana Difesa Animali ed Ambiente -AIDAA) (2 signatures) (No 1451/2012); Emilia Imbault-Huart (No 1452/2012); (name withheld) (No 1453/2012); William Sanders (No 1454/2012); (name withheld) (No 1455/2012); Nello Cavallina (No 1456/2012); Ryan McGowan (No 1457/2012); Paul Duvauchelle (No 1458/2012); Judith Klein (Open Society Foundations) (No 1459/2012); Collectif Carmen (No 1460/2012); Massimo Tendi (No 1461/2012); Danièle Auclin (DECAVIPEC en Nièvre) (No 1462/2012); Michel-Jean Jacquot (Avocat à la Cour (Barreau de Paris)) (No 1463/2012); Georges Dupont (No 1464/2012); Jozef Sliwinski (No 1465/2012); Gianfranco Ladini (La Distributrice srl) (No 1466/2012); (name withheld) (No 1467/2012); Christiane Henker (No 1468/2012); Paulo Alexandre Viegas Pires (No 1469/2012).

12. Follow-up to a request for waiver of immunity

Following the European Parliament's decision of 23 October 2012 to waive the immunity of Martin Ehrenhauser in connection with legal proceedings before the Public Prosecutor's Office of Vienna (minutes of 23.10.2012, item 6.1), the competent Austrian authorities had notified Parliament, in accordance with Rule 7(9), that legal proceedings had ended.

13. Documents received

The following documents had been received:

- 1) from the Council and Commission
 - Special Report No 15/2012 (2011 discharge) Management of conflict of interest in selected EU Agencies (N7-0119/2012 C7-0373/2012 2012/2284(DEC))

referred to responsible: CONT opinion: ENVI, TRAN

 Proposal for a Decision of the European Parliament and of the Council derogating temporarily from Directive 2003/87/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council establishing a scheme for greenhouse gas emission allowance trading within the Community (COM(2012)0697 - C7-0385/2012 - 2012/0328(COD))

The President would consult the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions on this proposal, in accordance with Rule 124(1) and Rule 125(1).

referred to responsible: ENVI opinion: ITRE, ECON, INTA, IMCO, TRAN

Proposal for transfer of appropriations DEC 39/2012 - Section III - Commission (N7-0129/2012 - C7-0386/2012 - 2012/2310(GBD))

referred to responsible: BUDG

— Proposal for transfer of appropriations DEC 47/2012 - Section III – Commission (N7-0130/2012 - C7-0387/2012 - 2012/2311(GBD))

referred to responsible: BUDG

Proposal for transfer of appropriations DEC 53/2012 - Section III - Commission (N7-0131/2012 - C7-0388/2012 - 2012/2312(GBD))

referred to responsible: BUDG

Proposal for transfer of appropriations DEC 54/2012 - Section III - Commission (N7-0132/2012 - C7-0389/2012 - 2012/2313(GBD))

referred to responsible: BUDG

Proposal for transfer of appropriations DEC 55/2012 - Section III - Commission (N7-0133/2012 - C7-0390/2012 - 2012/2314(GBD))

referred to responsible: BUDG

 Proposal for a Council decision on the conclusion of the Agreement on certain aspects of air services between the European Union and the Government of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka (15318/2012 - C7-0391/2012 - 2012/0018(NLE))

referred to responsible: TRAN

 Proposal for a Decision of the European Parliament and of the Council on a General Union Environment Action Programme to 2020 'Living well, within the limits of our planet' (COM(2012)0710 - C7-0392/2012 - 2012/0337(COD))

The President would consult the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions on this proposal, in accordance with Rule 124(1) and Rule 125(1).

referred to responsible: ENVI

opinion: PECH, AGRI, EMPL, ITRE, REGI

Proposal for a Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council amending Regulation (EU, Euratom) No 966/2012 as regards the financing of European political parties (COM(2012)0712 - C7-0393/2012 - 2012/0336(COD))

The President would consult the Court of Auditors, in accordance with Article 322 TFEU

referred to responsible: BUDG

opinion: AFCO, JURI, CONT

 Proposal for a Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on the accessibility of public sector bodies' websites (COM(2012)0721 - C7-0394/2012 - 2012/0340(COD))

The President would consult the European Economic and Social Committee on this proposal, in accordance with Rule 124(1).

referred to responsible: IMCO

opinion: CULT, EMPL, ITRE, ECON, LIBE, TRAN, REGI

Special Report No 16/2012 (2011 discharge) – The effectiveness of the Single Area Payment Scheme as a transitional system for supporting farmers in the new Member States (N7-0134/2012 - C7-0395/2012 - 2012/2315(DEC))

referred to responsible: CONT

opinion: AGRI

 Proposal for a Council decision authorising enhanced cooperation in the area of the financial transaction tax (COM(2012)0631 - C7-0396/2012 - 2012/0298(APP))

referred to responsible: ECON

opinion: JURI, IMCO, REGI

Proposal for transfer of appropriations DEC 51/2012 - Section III - Commission (N7-0135/2012 - C7-0398/2012 - 2012/2316(GBD))

referred to responsible: BUDG

 New draft budget of the European Union for the financial year 2013: Council position of 6 December 2012 (17195/2012 - C7-0399/2012 - 2012/2307(BUD))

referred to responsible: BUDG

opinion: PETI, FEMM, AFCO, DEVE, CULT, AFET, PECH, AGRI, ENVI, EMPL, ITRE, JURI, ECON, CONT, LIBE, INTA, IMCO, TRAN,

 Draft amending budget No 6 to the general budget for 2012: Council position of 6 December 2012 (17295/2012 - C7-0401/2012 - 2012/2281(BUD))

referred to responsible: BUDG

opinion: DEVE, AFET, EMPL, ITRE, JURI, LIBE, REGI

 Report from the Commission to the European Parliament and the Council on the evaluation of the Union's finances based on the results achieved (COM(2012)0675 - Article 318 TFEU)

referred to responsible: CONT, BUDG, PETI, FEMM, AFCO, DEVE, CULT, AFET, PECH, AGRI, ENVI, EMPL, ITRE, JURI, ECON, LIBE, INTA, IMCO, TRAN, REGI

— Court of Auditors Opinion No 8/2012 on the proposal for a Directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on the fight against fraud to the Union's financial interests by means of criminal law (Article 325 TFEU)

referred to responsible: CONT, ECON, JURI, LIBE

2) from committees

2.1) reports

- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on the harmonisation of the laws of the Member States relating to equipment and protective systems intended for use in potentially explosive atmospheres (Recast) (COM(2011)0772 -C7-0426/2011 - 2011/0356(COD)) - IMCO Committee - Rapporteur: Zuzana Roithová (A7-0255/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on the harmonisation of the laws of the Member States relating to making available on the market of non-automatic weighing instruments (recast) (COM(2011)0766 - C7-0430/2011 -2011/0352(COD)) - IMCO Committee - Rapporteur: Zuzana Roithová (A7-0257/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on the harmonisation of the laws of the Member States relating to electromagnetic compatibility (recast) (COM(2011)0765 - C7-0429/2011 - 2011/0351(COD)) - IMCO Committee -Rapporteur: Zuzana Roithová (A7-0258/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on the harmonisation of the laws of Member States relating to the making available on the market of electrical equipment designed for use within certain voltage limits (recast) (COM(2011)0773 -C7-0427/2011 - 2011/0357(COD)) - IMCO Committee - Rapporteur: Zuzana Roithová (A7-0259/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on the harmonisation of the laws of the Member States relating to making available on the market of lifts and safety components for lifts (recast) (COM(2011)0770 - C7-0421/2011 -2011/0354(COD)) - IMCO Committee - Rapporteur: Zuzana Roithová (A7-0260/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on the harmonisation of the laws of the Member States relating to making available on the market of simple pressure vessels (recast) (COM(2011)0768 - C7-0428/2011 - 2011/0350(COD)) -IMCO Committee - Rapporteur: Zuzana Roithová (A7-0261/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council amending Council Regulation (EC) No 3/2008 on information provision and promotion measures for agricultural products on the internal market and in third countries (COM(2011)0663 C7-0365/2011 2011/0290(COD)) AGRI Committee Rapporteur: José Bové (A7-0279/2012)

- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council on alternative dispute resolution for consumer disputes and amending Regulation (EC) No 2006/2004 and Directive 2009/22/EC (Directive on consumer ADR) (COM(2011)0793 C7-0454/2011 2011/0373(COD)) IMCO Committee Rapporteur: Louis Grech (A7-0280/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a decision of the European Parliament and of the Council on accounting rules and action plans on greenhouse gas emissions and removals resulting from activities related to land use, land use change and forestry (COM(2012)0093 C7-0074/2012 2012/0042(COD)) ENVI Committee Rapporteur: Kriton Arsenis (A7-0317/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a decision of the European Parliament and of the Council on serious cross-border threats to health (COM(2011)0866 C7-0488/2011 2011/0421(COD)) ENVI Committee Rapporteur: Gilles Pargneaux (A7-0337/2012)
- ***Interim report on the draft Council Decision on the conclusion of the Agreement establishing an Association between the European Union and its Member States, on the one hand, and Central America, on the other (16395/1/2011 C7-0182/2012 2011/0303(NLE)) AFET Committee Rapporteur: José Ignacio Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra (A7-0360/2012)
- *** Recommendation on the draft Council Decision on the conclusion of the Agreement establishing an Association between the European Union and its Member States, on the one hand, and Central America, on the other (16395/1/2011 C7-0182/2012 2011/0303(NLE)) AFET Committee Rapporteur: José Ignacio Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra (A7-0362/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council on groundhandling services at Union airports and repealing Council Directive 96/67/EC (COM(2011)0824 C7-0457/2011 2011/0397(COD)) TRAN Committee Rapporteur: Artur Zasada (A7-0364/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council on European statistics on safety from crime (COM(2011)0335 C7-0155/2011 2011/0146(COD)) LIBE Committee Rapporteur: Timothy Kirkhope (A7-0365/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a directive of the European Parliament and of the Council amending Council Directive 92/65/EEC as regards the animal health requirements governing intra-Union trade in and imports into the Union of dogs, cats and ferrets (COM(2012)0090 C7-0061/2012 2012/0040(COD)) ENVI Committee Rapporteur: Horst Schnellhardt (A7-0366/2012)
- Report on financing EU SMEs' trade and investment: facilitated access to credit in support of internationalisation (2012/2114(INI)) - INTA Committee - Rapporteur: Jan Zahradil (A7-0367/2012)
- Report with recommendations to the Commission on a Law of Administrative procedure of the European Union (2012/2024(INI)) - JURI Committee - Rapporteur: Luigi Berlinguer (A7-0369/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a Regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council on the non-commercial movement of pet animals (COM(2012)0089 - C7-0060/2012 -2012/0039(COD)) - ENVI Committee - Rapporteur: Horst Schnellhardt (A7-0371/2012)

- ***I Report on the proposal for a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council on the establishment of rules and procedures with regard to the introduction of noise-related operating restrictions at Union airports within a Balanced Approach and repealing Directive2002/30/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council (COM(2011)0828 - C7-0456/2011 - 2011/0398(COD)) - TRAN Committee - Rapporteur: Jörg Leichtfried (A7-0372/2012)
- Report on the Microbial Challenge Rising threats from Antimicrobial Resistance (2012/2041(INI)) - ENVI Committee - Rapporteur: Anna Rosbach (A7-0373/2012)
- Report on a Digital Freedom Strategy in EU Foreign Policy (2012/2094(INI)) AFET Committee
 Rapporteur: Marietje Schaake (A7-0374/2012)
- Report on the annual report on Human Rights and Democracy in the World 2011 and the European Union's policy on the matter (2012/2145(INI)) - AFET Committee - Rapporteur: Leonidas Donskis (A7-0377/2012)
- Report on the review of the EU's human rights strategy (2012/2062(INI)) AFET Committee -Rapporteur: Rui Tavares (A7-0378/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council on common rules for the allocation of slots at European Union airports (recast) (COM(2011)0827 C7-0458/2011 2011/0391(COD)) TRAN Committee Rapporteur: Giommaria Uggias (A7-0379/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council on a European Union energy-efficiency labelling programme for office equipment amending Regulation (EC) No 106/2008 on a Community energy-efficiency labelling programme for office equipment (COM(2012)0109 C7-0077/2012 2012/0049(COD)) ITRE Committee Rapporteur: Béla Kovács (A7-0382/2012)
- Report on the situation of fundamental rights in the European Union (2010-2011)
 (2011/2069(INI)) LIBE Committee Rapporteur: Monika Flašíková Beňová (A7-0383/2012)
- *** Recommendation on the draft Council decision on the conclusion of the Trade Agreement between the European Union and its Member States, of the one part, and Colombia and Peru, of the other part (14762/1/2011 - C7-0287/2012 - 2011/0249(NLE)) - INTA Committee -Rapporteur: Mário David (A7-0388/2012)
- * Report on the proposal for a Council regulation conferring specific tasks on the European Central Bank concerning policies relating to the prudential supervision of credit institutions (COM(2012)0511 C7-0314/2012 2012/0242(CNS)) ECON Committee Rapporteur: Marianne Thyssen (A7-0392/2012)
- ***I Report on the proposal for a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council amending Regulation (EU) No 1093/2010 establishing a European Supervisory Authority (European Banking Authority) as regards its interaction with Council Regulation (EU) No .../... conferring specific tasks on the European Central Bank concerning policies relating to the prudential supervision of credit institutions (COM(2012)0512 C7-0289/2012 2012/0244(COD)) ECON Committee Rapporteur: Sven Giegold (A7-0393/2012)
- Recommendation on the proposal for a Council decision authorising enhanced cooperation in the area of the financial transaction tax (COM(2012)0631 C7-0396/2012 2012/0298(APP))
 ECON Committee Rapporteur: Anni Podimata (A7-0396/2012)

- 2.2) recommendations for second reading
 - ***II Recommendation for second reading on the Council position at first reading with a view to the adoption of a decision of the European Parliament and of the Council providing further macro-financial assistance to Georgia (05682/1/2012 C7-0221/2012 2010/0390(COD)) INTA Committee Rapporteur: Vital Moreira (A7-0363/2012)
 - ***II Recommendation for second reading on the Council position at first reading with a view to the adoption of a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council amending Regulation (EC) No 1406/2002 establishing a European Maritime Safety Agency (10090/2/2012 C7-0329/2012 2010/0303(COD)) TRAN Committee Rapporteur: Knut Fleckenstein (A7-0387/2012)
 - ***II Recommendation for second reading on the Council position at first reading with a view to the adoption of a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council establishing transitional arrangements for bilateral investment agreements between Member States and third countries (11917/1/2012 C7-0328/2012 2010/0197(COD)) INTA Committee Rapporteur: Vital Moreira (A7-0389/2012)
- 3) from Members
 - 3.1) motions for resolutions (Rule 120)
 - Nuno Melo. Motion for a resolution on increasing thefts of non-ferrous metals in EU countries (B7-0530/2012)

referred to responsible: LIBE

opinion: IMCO

 Mario Borghezio, Lara Comi, Malcolm Harbour, Emma McClarkin, Cristiana Muscardini, Rolandas Paksas, Georgios Papastamkos, Konstantinos Poupakis and Matteo Salvini. Motion for a resolution to strengthen common provisions against counterfeiting with third countries and International Organisations (B7-0531/2012)

referred to responsible: JURI

opinion: INTA, IMCO

 Cristiana Muscardini. Motion for a resolution on safety standards for workers in European firms which have relocated to third countries (B7-0532/2012)

referred to responsible: EMPL

- 3.2) proposed amendments to the Rules of Procedure (Rule 212)
 - Zita Gurmai and Mikael Gustafsson. Proposal for amendment of Parliaments Rules of Procedure
 Amendment to Rule 49(2) of the Rules of Procedure (B7-0529/2012)

referred to responsible: AFCO

14. Order of business

The next item was the order of business.

The final draft agenda for the part-session (PE 500.368/PDOJ) had been distributed. No changes had been proposed.

The order of business was thus established.

15. EU-Central America association agreement (debate)

Interim report on the draft Council Decision on the conclusion of the Agreement establishing an Association between the European Union and its Member States, on the one hand, and Central America, on the other [16395/1/2011 - C7-0182/2012- 2011/0303(NLE)] - Committee on Foreign Affairs. Rapporteur: José Ignacio Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra (A7-0360/2012)

*** Recommendation: on the proposal for a Council decision on the conclusion of the Agreement establishing an Association between the European Union and its Member States, on the one hand, and Central America, on the other [16395/2011 – C7-0182/2012 – 2011/0303(NLE)] - Committee on Foreign Affairs. Rapporteur: José Ignacio Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra (A7-0362/2012)

José Ignacio Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra introduced the report and recommendation.

The following spoke: Karel De Gucht (Member of the Commission).

The following spoke: Jean-Pierre Audy (on points made by Karel De Gucht), Eva Joly (rapporteur for the opinion of the DEVE Committee), Francisco José Millán Mon, on behalf of the PPE Group, and Luis Yáñez-Barnuevo García, on behalf of the S&D Group.

IN THE CHAIR: Roberta ANGELILLI Vice-President

The following spoke: Renate Weber, on behalf of the ALDE Group, Catherine Grèze, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, Edvard Kožušník, on behalf of the ECR Group, Inês Cristina Zuber, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, Elisabeth Köstinger, Gianluca Susta, Franziska Keller, who also replied to a blue-card question by Jörg Leichtfried, Jörg Leichtfried, Ulrike Lunacek and Pablo Zalba Bidegain (rapporteur for the opinion of the INTA Committee).

The following spoke under the 'catch-the-eye' procedure: Silvia-Adriana Țicău and Andrew Henry William Brons.

The following spoke: Karel De Gucht and José Ignacio Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra.

The debate closed.

Vote: minutes of 11.12.2012, item 8.13 and minutes of 11.12.2012, item 8.14.

16. EU-Colombia/Peru trade agreement *** (debate)

Recommendation on the draft Council decision on the conclusion of the Trade Agreement between the European Union and its Member States, of the one part, and Colombia and Peru, of the other part [14762/1/2011 - C7-0287/2012- 2011/0249(NLE)] - Committee on International Trade. Rapporteur: Mário David (A7-0388/2012)

Mário David introduced the recommendation.

The following spoke: Karel De Gucht (Member of the Commission).

The following spoke: José Ignacio Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra (rapporteur for the opinion of the AFET Committee), Pino Arlacchi (rapporteur for the opinion of the DEVE Committee), who also replied to a blue-card question by Ulrike Lunacek, Daniel Caspary, on behalf of the PPE Group, Bernd Lange, on behalf of the S&D Group, Catherine Bearder, on behalf of the ALDE Group, Franziska Keller, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, who also replied to a blue-card question by Bernd Lange, Jan Zahradil, on behalf of the ECR Group, Helmut Scholz, on behalf of the GUE/NGL Group, who also replied to a blue-card question by Bernd Lange, Pablo Zalba Bidegain, Vital Moreira, Izaskun Bilbao Barandica, Struan Stevenson, who also replied to a blue-card question by Richard Howitt, Paul Murphy, Elisabeth Köstinger, who also replied to a blue-card question by Franz Obermayr, David Martin, Gay Mitchell, who also replied to a blue-card question by Paul Murphy, and Luis Yáñez-Barnuevo García.

IN THE CHAIR: Miguel Angel MARTÍNEZ MARTÍNEZ Vice-President

The following spoke: João Ferreira, to put a blue-card question to Luis Yáñez-Barnuevo García, who replied to this, María Auxiliadora Correa Zamora, Maria Badia i Cutchet, George Sabin Cutaş, Jörg Leichtfried, who also replied to a blue-card question by Hans-Peter Martin, and Richard Howitt, who also replied to a blue-card question by José Ignacio Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra.

The following spoke under the 'catch-the-eye' procedure: Evelyn Regner, Charalampos Angourakis, Franz Obermayr, Sergio Gaetano Cofferati, João Ferreira and Andrew Henry William Brons.

The following spoke: Karel De Gucht, Mário David and Richard Howitt, who made a personal statement in response to what Karel De Gucht had said.

The debate closed.

Vote: minutes of 11.12.2012, item 8.15.

17. Transitional arrangements for bilateral investment agreements between Member States and third countries ***II (debate)

Recommendation for second reading on the Council position at first reading with a view to the adoption of a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council establishing transitional arrangements for bilateral investment agreements between Member States and third countries [2010/0197(COD)] - Committee on International Trade. Rapporteur: Vital Moreira (A7-0389/2012)

Vital Moreira introduced the recommendation for second reading.

The following spoke: Karel De Gucht (Member of the Commission).

The following spoke: Ria Oomen-Ruijten, on behalf of the PPE Group, Josefa Andrés Barea, on behalf of the S&D Group, Niccolò Rinaldi, on behalf of the ALDE Group, Franziska Keller, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, Jaroslav Paška, on behalf of the EFD Group, Hans-Peter Martin, Non-attached Member, Paweł Zalewski, Gianluca Susta and Andreas Mölzer.

The following spoke under the 'catch-the-eye' procedure: Silvia-Adriana Ţicău and Franz Obermayr.

The following spoke: Karel De Gucht and Vital Moreira.

The debate closed.

Vote: minutes of 11.12.2012, item 8.6.

18. Macro-financial assistance to the Kyrgyz Republic ***I (debate)

Report on the proposal for a decision of the European Parliament and of the Council providing macrofinancial assistance to the Kyrgyz Republic [2011/0458(COD)] - Committee on International Trade. Rapporteur: Vital Moreira (A7-0208/2012)

Vital Moreira introduced the report.

The following spoke: Karel De Gucht (Member of the Commission).

The following spoke: Paolo Bartolozzi, on behalf of the PPE Group, and George Sabin Cutaş, on behalf of the S&D Group.

IN THE CHAIR: Othmar KARAS Vice-President

The following spoke: Metin Kazak, on behalf of the ALDE Group, Nicole Kiil-Nielsen, on behalf of the Verts/ALE Group, Jaroslav Paška, on behalf of the EFD Group, Laurence J.A.J. Stassen, Non-attached Member, Elisabeth Jeggle, Niccolò Rinaldi and Alojz Peterle.

The following spoke under the 'catch-the-eye' procedure: Andreas Mölzer.

The following spoke: Karel De Gucht and Vital Moreira.

The debate closed.

Vote: minutes of 11.12.2012, item 8.1.

19. One-minute speeches on matters of political importance

In accordance with Rule 150, the following Members who wished to draw the attention of Parliament to matters of political importance spoke for one minute:

Gabriel Mato Adrover, Alexander Mirsky, Angelika Werthmann, Sandrine Bélier, João Ferreira, Andrew Henry William Brons, Kinga Gál, Ricardo Cortés Lastra, Ivo Vajgl, Kyriacos Triantaphyllides, Slavi Binev, Arkadiusz Tomasz Bratkowski, Edit Herczog, Ramon Tremosa i Balcells, Hans-Peter Martin, Marisa Matias, Zofija Mazej Kukovič, Maria Eleni Koppa, Liam Aylward, Inês Cristina Zuber, Csaba Sógor, George Sabin Cutaş, Salvador Sedó i Alabart, Sergio Gaetano Cofferati, Kriton Arsenis and Evelyn Regner.

20. Prevention of age-related diseases of women (short presentation)

Report on prevention of age-related diseases of women [2012/2129(INI)] - Committee on Women's Rights and Gender Equality. Rapporteur: Roberta Angelilli (A7-0340/2012)

Roberta Angelilli made the presentation.

The following spoke under the 'catch-the-eye' procedure: Petru Constantin Luhan, Silvia-Adriana Țicău, Angelika Werthmann, Danuta Jazłowiecka, Miroslav Mikolášik and Sari Essayah.

The following spoke: Tonio Borg (Member of the Commission).

IN THE CHAIR: Isabelle DURANT Vice-President

The item closed.

Vote: minutes of 11.12.2012, item 8.17.

21. Completing the digital single market (short presentation)

Report on completing the Digital Single Market [2012/2030(INI)] - Committee on the Internal Market and Consumer Protection. Rapporteur: Pablo Arias Echeverría (A7-0341/2012)

Pablo Arias Echeverría made the presentation.

The following spoke under the 'catch-the-eye' procedure: Zofija Mazej Kukovič, Sari Essayah, Miroslav Mikolášik, Silvia-Adriana Țicău, Petru Constantin Luhan, Alajos Mészáros, Seán Kelly, Danuta Jazłowiecka, Malcolm Harbour, Marie-Thérèse Sanchez-Schmid and Ildikó Gáll-Pelcz.

The following spoke: Tonio Borg (Member of the Commission).

The item closed.

Vote: minutes of 11.12.2012, item 8.3.

22. Rising threats from antimicrobial resistance (short presentation)

Report on the Microbial Challenge - Rising threats from Antimicrobial Resistance [2012/2041(INI)] - Committee on the Environment, Public Health and Food Safety. Rapporteur: Anna Rosbach (A7-0373/2012)

Anna Rosbach made the presentation.

The following spoke under the 'catch-the-eye' procedure: Sari Essayah, Miroslav Mikolášik, Marie-Thérèse Sanchez-Schmid, Silvia-Adriana Țicău, Theodoros Skylakakis, João Ferreira, Jaroslav Paška, Erik Bánki and Zofija Mazej Kukovič.

The following spoke: Tonio Borg (Member of the Commission).

The item closed.

Vote: minutes of 11.12.2012, item 8.18.

23. Financing SME trade and investment (short presentation)

Report on financing EU SMEs' trade and investment: facilitated access to credit in support of international-isation [2012/2114(INI)] - Committee on International Trade. Rapporteur: Jan Zahradil (A7-0367/2012)

Jan Zahradil made the presentation.

The following spoke under the 'catch-the-eye' procedure: Alajos Mészáros, Zofija Mazej Kukovič, Petru Constantin Luhan, María Auxiliadora Correa Zamora, Jaroslav Paška, Silvia-Adriana Țicău and Seán Kelly.

The following spoke: Tonio Borg (Member of the Commission).

The item closed.

Vote: minutes of 21.12.2012, item 8.4.

24. A digital freedom strategy in EU foreign policy (short presentation)

Report on a Digital Freedom Strategy in EU Foreign Policy [2012/2094(INI)] - Committee on Foreign Affairs. Rapporteur: Marietje Schaake (A7-0374/2012)

Marietje Schaake made the presentation.

The following spoke under the 'catch-the-eye' procedure: Silvia-Adriana Țicău, Seán Kelly and Jaroslav Paška.

The following spoke: Tonio Borg (Member of the Commission).

The item closed.

Vote: minutes of 11.12.2012, item 8.5.

25. Agenda of the next sitting

The agenda of the next day's sitting had been established ('Agenda' PE 500.368/OJMA).

26. Closure of the sitting

The sitting closed at 22.55.

Klaus Welle Secretary-General Georgios Papastamkos Vice-President

ATTENDANCE REGISTER

The following signed:

Agnew, Albertini, Albrecht, Alfano, Alfonsi, Allam, Alvaro, Alves, Andersdotter, Anderson, Andreasen, Andrés Barea, Andrieu, Andrikienė, Angelilli, Angourakis, Antinoro, Antonescu, Antoniozzi, Arias Echeverría, Arlacchi, Arsenis, Ashworth, Atkins, Attard-Montalto, Auconie, Audy, Ayala Sender, Aylward, Ayuso, van Baalen, Bach, Badia i Cutchet, Bagó, Balčytis, Baldassarre, Balz, Balzani, Bánki, Bartolozzi, Băsescu, Bastos, Batten, Bauer, Bearder, Belder, Belet, Bélier, Benarab-Attou, Bennion, Berlato, Berra, Besset, Bicep, Bielan, Bilbao Barandica, Binev, Bizzotto, Blinkevičiūtė, Bodu, Böge, Bonsignore, Borghezio, Borsellino, Boştinaru, Bové, Bowles, Bozkurt, Bradbourn, Bratkowski, Březina, Brok, Brons, Brzobohatá, Bufton, Bullmann, Buşoi, Bütikofer, Buzek, Cabrnoch, Cadec, Callanan, van de Camp, Campbell Bannerman, Cancian, Capoulas Santos, Caronna, Carvalho, Cashman, Caspary, Castex, del Castillo Vera, Cavada, Cercas, Chatzimarkakis, Chichester, Childers, Chountis, Christensen, Chrysogelos, Claeys, Cliveti, Cochet, Coelho, Cofferati, Collin-Langen, Colman, Comi, Cornelissen, Correa Zamora, António Fernando Correia de Campos, Cortés Lastra, Silvia Costa, Costello, Cottigny, Cozzolino, Cretu, Cronberg, Cuschieri, Cutaş, Cymański, Czarnecki, Frédéric Daerden, van Dalen, Dăncilă, Danellis, Danjean, Dantin, (The Earl of) Dartmouth, Daul, David, Davies, De Angelis, De Backer, De Castro, Dehaene, Delvaux, De Mita, de Sarnez, Désir, Deß, Deva, De Veyrac, Dodds, Domenici, Donskis, Droutsas, Duff, Durant, Dušek, Ehrenhauser, Eickhout, Enciu, Engel, Engström, Eppink, Ertug, Essayah, Estaràs Ferragut, Estrela, Evans, Fajmon, Falbr, Farage, Färm, Feio, Ferber, Fernandes, Elisa Ferreira, João Ferreira, Fidanza, Fisas Ayxela, Fjellner, Flašíková Beňová, Flautre, Fleckenstein, Florenz, Fontana, Foster, Fox, Fraga Estévez, Franco, Mariya Gabriel, Gahler, Gál, Gallagher, Gallo, Gáll-Pelcz, Garcés Ramón, García-Hierro Caraballo, García Pérez, Gardiazábal Rubial, Gardini, Gargani, Gebhardt, Geier, Gerbrandy, Geringer de Oedenberg, Giannakou, Giegold, Gierek, Girling, Glattfelder, Godmanis, Goebbels, Goerens, Gollnisch, Göncz, Goulard, de Grandes Pascual, Gräßle, Grèze, Griesbeck, Griffin, Gróbarczyk, Groote, Grosch, Grossetête, Grzyb, Gualtieri, Guerrero Salom, Guillaume, Gurmai, Gutiérrez-Cortines, Gutiérrez Prieto, Gyürk, Häfner, Handzlik, Hannan, Harbour, Harkin, Hartong, Hassi, Haug, Häusling, Hedh, Helmer, Hénin, Herczog, Herranz García, Hibner, Higgins, Nadja Hirsch, Hoang Ngoc, Hohlmeier, Honeyball, Hortefeux, Howitt, Danuta Maria Hübner, Hudghton, Hughes, Hyusmenova, Iacolino, Ilchev, Iotova, Iovine, Irigoyen Pérez, Iturgaiz Angulo, Ivan, Jaakonsaari, Jäätteenmäki, Jadot, Jahr, Járóka, Jazłowiecka, Jedrzejewska, Jeggle, Jensen, Johansson, Joly, Jørgensen, Kacin, Kadenbach, Kalinowski, Kalniete, Kamall, Kamiński, van der Kammen, Kammerevert, Karas, Karim, Karinš, Kasoulides, Kastler, Kazak, Kelam, Keller, Kelly, Kiil-Nielsen, Kirilov, Klaß, Kleva Kekuš, Klute, Koch, Koch-Mehrin, Kohlíček, Kolarska-Bobińska, Koppa, Korhola, Kósa, Köstinger, Koumoutsakos, Béla Kovács, Kovatchev, Kowal, Kozłowski, Kożušník, Krahmer, Krehl, Kukan, Kurski, Lamassoure, Lambert, Lamberts, Lambsdorff, Landsbergis, Lange, Langen, La Via, Le Brun, Le Grip, Legutko, Lehne, Le Hyaric, Leichtfried, Leinen, Jean-Marie Le Pen, Liberadzki, Lichtenberger, Lisek, Lochbihler, Lope Fontagné, López Aguilar, López-Istúriz White, Lösing, Lövin, Ludford, Ludvigsson, Luhan, Łukacijewska, Lulling, Lunacek, Lyon, McAvan, McCarthy, McClarkin, McIntyre, McMillan-Scott, Macovei, Malinov, Manders, Mănescu, Maňka, Mann, Manner, Marcinkiewicz, Marinescu, David Martin, Hans-Peter Martin, Martínez Martínez, Masip Hidalgo, Maštálka, Mastella, Mathieu, Matias, Mato Adrover, Matula, Mauro, Mazej Kukovič, Mazzoni, Meissner, Mélenchon, Menéndez del Valle, Merkies, Messerschmidt, Mészáros, Migalski, Mikolášik, Milana, Millán Mon, Mirsky, Mitchell, Mölzer, Moraes, Moreira, Morganti, Morin-Chartier, Morkūnaitė-Mikulėnienė, Mulder, Muñiz De Urquiza, Murphy, Muscardini, Mynář, Naranjo Escobar, Nattrass, Neuser, Neveďalová, Newton Dunn, Neynsky, Nicholson, Nicolai, Niculescu, Niebler, Nilsson, Obermayr, Obiols, Ojuland, Olbrycht, Olejniczak, Omarjee, Oomen-Ruijten, Őry, Ouzký, Oviir, Pack, Padar, Paksas, Paleckis, Paliadeli, Pallone, Panayotov, Panayotova, Panzeri, Papadopoulou, Papanikolaou, Papastamkos, Pargneaux, Parvanova, Pascu, Paška, Patrão Neves, Patriciello, Paulsen, Peterle, Pieper, Pietikäinen, Piotrowski, Pirillo, Pirker, Pittella, Poc, Podimata, Ponga, Posselt, Poupakis, Preda, Prendergast, Prodi, Protasiewicz, Provera, Ransdorf, Rapkay, Rapti, Regner, Reimers, Remek, Repo, Reul, Riera Madurell, Ries, Rinaldi, Riquet, Rivellini, Roatta, Rochefort, Rodust, Rohde, Roithová, Romero López, Romeva i Rueda, Ronzulli, Rosbach, Rossi, Roth-Behrendt, Rouček, Rübig, Rubiks, Rühle, Šadurskis, Saïfi, Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra, Salatto, Salavrakos, Sánchez Presedo, Sanchez-Schmid, Sârbu, Sargentini, Sartori, Sarvamaa, Sassoli, Saudargas, Savisaar-Toomast, Schaake, Schaldemose, Schlyter, Olle Schmidt, Schnellhardt, Schnieber-Jastram, Scholz, Schöpflin, Schroedter, Martin Schulz, Werner Schulz, Schwab, Scottà, Scurria, Sedó i Alabart, Seeber, Sehnalová, Senyszyn, Serracchiani, Severin, Siekierski, Silvestris, Simon, Simpson, Sinclaire, Sippel, Skinner, Skrzydlewska, Skylakakis, Sógor, Sommer, Søndergaard, Sonik, Sosa Wagner, Sousa, Speroni, Staes, Stassen, Šťastný, Stavrakakis, Steinruck, Stevenson, Stihler, van der Stoep, Stolojan, Stoyanov, Strejček, Striffler, Sturdy, Surján, Susta, Svensson, Szájer, Szegedi, Szymański, Tabajdi, Takkula, Tănăsescu, Tannock, Tarabella, Tarand, Tatarella, Tavares, Keith Taylor, Rebecca Taylor, Teixeira, Thein, Theocharous, Theurer, Thomas, Thomsen, Thun und Hohenstein, Țicău, Tirolien, Toia, Tőkés, Torvalds, Tošenovský, Toussas, Trautmann, Trematerra, Tremosa i Balcells, Triantaphyllides, Trzaskowski, Tsoukalas, Turmes, Tzavela, Uggias, Ulmer, Ulvskog, Urutchev, Vadim Tudor, Vaidere, Vajgl, Van Brempt, Vanhecke, Van Orden, Vaughan, Vergnaud, Vidal-Quadras, Vigenin, de Villiers, Vlasák, Vlasto, Wałęsa, Watson, Henri Weber, Manfred Weber, Renate Weber, Weidenholzer, Weiler, Werthmann, Westlund, Westphal, Wieland, Wikström, Willmott, Wils, Hermann Winkler, Iuliu Winkler, Włosowicz, Wojciechowski, Wortmann-Kool, Yáñez-Barnuevo García, Zahradil, Zala, Zalba Bidegain, Zalewski, Zanoni, Zasada, Ždanoka, Zeller, Zemke, Zijlstra, Zīle, Zimmer, Ziobro, Zuber, Zver, Zwiefka, Agnew, Albertini, Albrecht, Alfano, Alfonsi, Allam, Alvaro, Alves, Andersdotter, Anderson, Andreasen, Andrés Barea, Andrieu, Andrikienė, Angelilli, Angourakis, Antinoro, Antonescu, Antoniozzi, Arias Echeverría, Arlacchi,

Arsenis, Ashworth, Atkins, Attard-Montalto, Auconie, Audy, Ayala Sender, Aylward, Ayuso, van Baalen, Bach, Badia i Cutchet, Bagó, Balčytis, Baldassarre, Balz, Balzani, Bánki, Bartolozzi, Băsescu, Bastos, Batten, Bauer, Bearder, Belder, Belet, Bélier, Benarab-Attou, Bennion, Berlato, Berra, Besset, Bicep, Bielan, Bilbao Barandica, Binev, Bizzotto, Blinkevičiūtė, Bodu, Böge, Bonsignore, Borghezio, Borsellino, Boştinaru, Bové, Bowles, Bozkurt, Bradbourn, Bratkowski, Březina, Brok, Brons, Brzobohatá, Bufton, Bullmann, Bușoi, Bütikofer, Buzek, Cabrnoch, Cadec, Callanan, van de Camp, Campbell Bannerman, Cancian, Capoulas Santos, Caronna, Carvalho, Cashman, Caspary, Castex, del Castillo Vera, Cavada, Cercas, Chatzimarkakis, Chichester, Childers, Chountis, Christensen, Chrysogelos, Claeys, Cliveti, Cochet, Coelho, Cofferati, Collin-Langen, Colman, Comi, Cornelissen, Correa Zamora, António Fernando Correia de Campos, Cortés Lastra, Silvia Costa, Costello, Cottigny, Cozzolino, Crețu, Cronberg, Cuschieri, Cutaş, Cymański, Czarnecki, Frédéric Daerden, van Dalen, Dăncilă, Danellis, Danjean, Dantin, (The Earl of) Dartmouth, Daul, David, Davies, De Angelis, De Backer, De Castro, Dehaene, Delvaux, De Mita, de Sarnez, Désir, Deß, Deva, De Veyrac, Dodds, Domenici, Donskis, Droutsas, Duff, Durant, Dušek, Ehrenhauser, Eickhout, Enciu, Engel, Engström, Eppink, Ertug, Essayah, Estaràs Ferragut, Estrela, Evans, Fajmon, Falbr, Farage, Färm, Feio, Ferber, Fernandes, Elisa Ferreira, João Ferreira, Fidanza, Fisas Ayxela, Fjellner, Flašíková Beňová, Flautre, Fleckenstein, Florenz, Fontana, Foster, Fox, Fraga Estévez, Franco, Mariya Gabriel, Gahler, Gál, Gallagher, Gallo, Gáll-Pelcz, Garcés Ramón, García-Hierro Caraballo, García Pérez, Gardiazábal Rubial, Gardini, Gargani, Gebhardt, Geier, Gerbrandy, Geringer de Oedenberg, Giannakou, Giegold, Gierek, Girling, Glattfelder, Godmanis, Goebbels, Goerens, Gollnisch, Göncz, Goulard, de Grandes Pascual, Gräßle, Grèze, Griesbeck, Griffin, Gróbarczyk, Groote, Grosch, Grossetête, Grzyb, Gualtieri, Guerrero Salom, Guillaume, Gurmai, Gutiérrez-Cortines, Gutiérrez Prieto, Gyürk, Häfner, Handzlik, Hannan, Harbour, Harkin, Hartong, Hassi, Haug, Häusling, Hedh, Helmer, Hénin, Herczog, Herranz García, Hibner, Higgins, Nadja Hirsch, Hoang Ngoc, Hohlmeier, Honeyball, Hortefeux, Howitt, Danuta Maria Hübner, Hudghton, Hughes, Hyusmenova, Iacolino, Ilchev, Iotova, Iovine, Irigoyen Pérez, Iturgaiz Angulo, Ivan, Jaakonsaari, Jäätteenmäki, Jadot, Jahr, Járóka, Jazłowiecka, Jedrzejewska, Jeggle, Jensen, Johansson, Joly, Jørgensen, Kacin, Kadenbach, Kalinowski, Kalniete, Kamall, Kamiński, van der Kammen, Kammerevert, Karas, Karim, Karinš, Kasoulides, Kastler, Kazak, Kelam, Keller, Kelly, Kiil-Nielsen, Kirilov, Klaß, Kleva Kekuš, Klute, Koch, Koch-Mehrin, Kohlíček, Kolarska-Bobińska, Koppa, Korhola, Kósa, Köstinger, Koumoutsakos, Béla Kovács, Kovatchev, Kowal, Kozłowski, Kożušník, Krahmer, Krehl, Kukan, Kurski, Lamassoure, Lambert, Lamberts, Lambsdorff, Landsbergis, Lange, Langen, La Via, Le Brun, Le Grip, Legutko, Lehne, Le Hyaric, Leichtfried, Leinen, Jean-Marie Le Pen, Liberadzki, Lichtenberger, Lisek, Lochbihler, Lope Fontagné, López Aguilar, López-Istúriz White, Lösing, Lövin, Ludford, Ludvigsson, Luhan, Łukacijewska, Lulling, Lunacek, Lyon, McAvan, McCarthy, McClarkin, McIntyre, McMillan-Scott, Macovei, Malinov, Manders, Mănescu, Manka, Mann, Manner, Marcinkiewicz, Marinescu, David Martin, Hans-Peter Martin, Martínez Martínez, Masip Hidalgo, Maštálka, Mastella, Mathieu, Matias, Mato Adrover, Matula, Mauro, Mazej Kukovič, Mazzoni, Meissner, Mélenchon, Menéndez del Valle, Merkies, Messerschmidt, Mészáros, Migalski, Mikolášik, Milana, Millán Mon, Mirsky, Mitchell, Mölzer, Moraes, Moreira, Morganti, Morin-Chartier, Morkūnaitė-Mikulėnienė, Mulder, Muñiz De Urquiza, Murphy, Muscardini, Mynář, Naranjo Escobar, Nattrass, Neuser, Neveďalová, Newton Dunn, Neynsky, Nicholson, Nicolai, Niculescu, Niebler, Nilsson, Obermayr, Obiols, Ojuland, Olbrycht, Olejniczak, Omarjee, Oomen-Ruijten, Őry, Ouzký, Oviir, Pack, Padar, Paksas, Paleckis, Paliadeli, Pallone, Panayotov, Panayotova, Panzeri, Papadopoulou, Papanikolaou, Papastamkos, Pargneaux, Parvanova, Pașcu, Paška, Patrão Neves, Patriciello, Paulsen, Peterle, Pieper, Pietikäinen, Piotrowski, Pirillo, Pirker, Pittella, Poc, Podimata, Ponga, Posselt, Poupakis, Preda, Prendergast, Prodi, Protasiewicz, Provera, Ransdorf, Rapkay, Rapti, Regner, Reimers, Remek, Repo, Reul, Riera Madurell, Ries, Rinaldi, Riquet, Rivellini, Roatta, Rochefort, Rodust, Rohde, Roithová, Romero López, Romeva i Rueda, Ronzulli, Rosbach, Rossi, Roth-Behrendt, Rouček, Rübig, Rubiks, Rühle, Šadurskis, Śaïfi, Salafranca Sánchez-Neyra, Salatto, Salavrakos, Sánchez Presedo, Sanchez-Schmid, Sârbu, Sargentini, Sartori, Sarvamaa, Sassoli, Saudargas, Savisaar-Toomast, Schaake, Schaldemose, Schlyter, Olle Schmidt, Schnellhardt, Schnieber-Jastram, Scholz, Schöpflin, Schroedter, Martin Schulz, Werner Schulz, Schwab, Scottà, Scurria, Sedó i Alabart, Seeber, Sehnalová, Senyszyn, Serracchiani, Severin, Siekierski, Silvestris, Simon, Simpson, Sinclaire, Sippel, Skinner, Skrzydlewska, Skylakakis, Sógor, Sommer, Søndergaard, Sonik, Sosa Wagner, Sousa, Speroni, Staes, Stassen, Šťastný, Stavrakakis, Steinruck, Stevenson, Stihler, van der Stoep, Stolojan, Stoyanov, Strejček, Striffler, Sturdy, Surján, Susta, Svensson, Szájer, Szegedi, Szymański, Tabajdi, Takkula, Tănăsescu, Tannock, Tarabella, Tarand, Tatarella, Tavares, Keith Taylor, Rebecca Taylor, Teixeira, Thein, Theocharous, Theurer, Thomas, Thomsen, Thun und Hohenstein, Țicău, Tirolien, Toia, Tőkés, Torvalds, Tošenovský, Toussas, Trautmann, Trematerra, Tremosa i Balcells, Triantaphyllides, Trzaskowski, Tsoukalas, Turmes, Tzavela, Uggias, Ulmer, Ulvskog, Urutchev, Vadim Tudor, Vaidere, Vajgl, Van Brempt, Vanhecke, Van Orden, Vaughan, Vergnaud, Vidal-Quadras, Vigenin, de Villiers, Vlasák, Vlasto, Wałęsa, Watson, Henri Weber, Manfred Weber, Renate Weber, Weidenholzer, Weiler, Werthmann, Westlund, Westphal, Wieland, Wikström, Willmott, Wils, Hermann Winkler, Iuliu Winkler, Włosowicz, Wojciechowski, Wortmann-Kool, Yáñez-Barnuevo García, Zahradil, Zala, Zalba Bidegain, Zalewski, Zanoni, Zasada, Ždanoka, Zeller, Zemke, Zijlstra, Zīle, Zimmer, Ziobro, Zuber, Zwiefka

Observers

Borzan, Božinović, Grubišić, Jerković, Matušić, Radoš, Vrbat, Vuljanić, Borzan, Božinović, Grubišić, Jerković, Matušić, Radoš, Vrbat, Vuljanić